

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FOURTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 3, 2008 to June 13, 2009

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 12, 2009

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2009

tion as set forth in this section regarding the abuse or neglect of a child and the investigation of and any services related to the abuse and neglect if the commissioner determines that such disclosure is not contrary to the best interests of the child, the child's siblings or other children in the household and any one of the following factors is present:

- A. The alleged perpetrator of the abuse or neglect has been charged with committing a crime related to the allegation of abuse or neglect maintained by the department;
- B. A judge, a law enforcement agency official, a district attorney or another state or local investigative agency or official has publicly disclosed, as required by law in the performance of official duties, the provision of child welfare services or the investigation by child welfare services of the abuse or neglect of the child; or
- C. An individual who is the parent, custodian or guardian of the victim or a child victim over 14 years of age has made a prior knowing, voluntary, public disclosure; ~~or,~~
- D. ~~The child named in the report has died.~~

Sec. 3. 22 MRSA §4008-A, sub-§1-A is enacted to read:

1-A. Disclosure required. The commissioner shall make public disclosure of the findings or information pursuant to this section in situations where child abuse or neglect results in a child fatality or near fatality, with the exception of circumstances, as determined with the advice of the Attorney General or appropriate district attorney, in which disclosure of child protective information would jeopardize a criminal investigation or proceeding.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 39

H.P. 501 - L.D. 718

An Act Concerning Cremated Remains

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 32 MRSA §1405-A, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 611, §1, is amended to read:

§1405-A. Disposition of cremated remains

A funeral director or a practitioner of funeral services who receives ~~remains~~ cremated remains or has received ~~remains~~ cremated remains prior to the effective date of this section may dispose of those ~~remains~~ cremated remains in accordance with Title 13, section

1032, providing the following conditions have been met:

- 1. Cremated remains not claimed for one year.** The ~~remains~~ cremated remains have not been claimed after a time period of at least ~~4 years~~ one year from the time of cremation; and
- 2. Notice.** The funeral director or practitioner of funeral services has sent notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the last known address of the person who authorized the cremation at least 60 days prior to disposal.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 40

S.P. 325 - L.D. 856

An Act To Ensure the Availability of Supplemental Educational Loans

Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts and resolves of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, unprecedented turbulence in the capital markets has made it necessary to replace existing auction rate bond financing for supplemental or alternative student loans with financing supported by a capital reserve fund; and

Whereas, if financing supported by a capital reserve fund cannot be made available, Maine students and families may be adversely affected by increased costs of education borrowing or limited availability of supplemental loans, which may affect the number of Maine students pursuing a higher education because they cannot secure the necessary financing; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 20-A MRSA §11424, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 807, §3, is amended to read:

1. Capital reserve fund. The authority may create and establish one or more capital reserve funds and may pay into any such capital reserve fund any money appropriated and made available by the State for the purposes of any such fund, any proceeds of the sale by the authority of bonds to the extent determined by the authority and any other money available to the author-

ity. The authority may not create or establish any capital reserve fund under this section after June 30, 2011.

Sec. 2. 20-A MRSA §11424, sub-§2, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 807, §3, is amended to read:

2. Application. Money held in any capital reserve fund, except as provided in this section, shall be used solely with respect to bonds, repayment of which is secured by any such fund and solely for the payment of principal of bonds, the purchase or redemption of those bonds, including any fees or premiums and the payment of interest on those bonds. In addition, if the authority obtains a letter of credit, insurance contract, surety bond or similar financial undertaking to establish and fund a capital reserve fund under this section, money in that capital reserve fund may be used to pay, as and when due, all reimbursement obligations of the authority established in connection with that letter of credit, insurance contract, surety bond or similar financial undertaking, including, but not limited to, all fees, expenses, indemnities and commissions. Money in excess of the reserve requirement set forth in subsection 3 may be transferred to other funds and accounts of the authority.

Sec. 3. 20-A MRSA §11424, sub-§6, as enacted by PL 1987, c. 807, §3, is amended to read:

6. Bonds outstanding. The authority ~~shall~~ may not have at any one time outstanding bonds to which subsection 5 is stated in the trust agreement or other document to apply in principal amount exceeding ~~\$50,000,000~~ \$300,000,000. The amount of bonds issued to refund bonds previously issued ~~shall~~ may not be taken into account in determining the principal amount of the bonds outstanding, ~~provided that as long as the proceeds of the refunding bonds are applied as promptly as possible to the refunding of the previously issued bonds.~~ In computing the total amount of bonds of the authority which that may at any time be outstanding for any purpose, the amount of the outstanding bonds that have been issued as capital appreciation bonds or as similar instruments shall must be valued as of any date of calculation at their current accreted value rather than their face value.

Sec. 4. Report of bond and loan activity. The Maine Educational Loan Authority shall submit a report to the Joint Standing Committee on Education and Cultural Affairs no later than April 2, 2010 summarizing the authority's bond and loan activity from the effective date of this Act through March 15, 2010. The report must include an account of tax exempt bonds issued during this period with amounts and rates for each issue. The report must include an account of bonds issued prior to the effective date of this Act that have been refinanced, the change in interest rates for these bonds and the bond cap available as of March 15, 2010.

The Maine Educational Loan Authority shall also report the rates on alternative loans originating after the effective date of this Act and changes in rates for loans outstanding on the effective date of this Act. The report must also include an account of any fees in excess of \$50,000 paid to entities outside the authority.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective April 17, 2009.

CHAPTER 41
H.P. 315 - L.D. 427

**An Act To Require School Bus
Drivers and School Bus
Attendants To Report
Suspected Child Abuse**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 22 MRSA §4011-A, sub-§1, ¶A, as amended by PL 2007, c. 577, §6, is further amended to read:

A. When acting in a professional capacity:

- (1) An allopathic or osteopathic physician, resident or intern;
- (2) An emergency medical services person;
- (3) A medical examiner;
- (4) A physician's assistant;
- (5) A dentist;
- (6) A dental hygienist;
- (7) A dental assistant;
- (8) A chiropractor;
- (9) A podiatrist;
- (10) A registered or licensed practical nurse;
- (11) A teacher;
- (12) A guidance counselor;
- (13) A school official;
- (14) A children's summer camp administrator or counselor;
- (15) A social worker;
- (16) A court-appointed special advocate or guardian ad litem for the child;
- (17) A homemaker;
- (18) A home health aide;